
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Tuesday 18 February 2020 
 

Licensing Panel 
 

Wednesday 26 February 2020, 2.00 pm 
 

Cumberland Suite, Market Hall, Wigton, CA7 9AA 
 

Membership: 
  
  
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Will Wilkinson  
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Lee Jardine on 01900 702556. 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Election of Chair   
 

 To elect a Chair for the ensuing meeting. 
  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Questions   
 

 To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00pm, 2 working days before the meeting. 

  

5. To consider representations received in relation to an application for a 
premises licence  (Pages 3 - 20) 

 

 
Procedure at Licensing Panel  (Pages 21 - 22) 
 



 
 

 
 
Monitoring Officer 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Friday 20 March 2020, 3.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Allerdale House 
 
 



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Licensing Panel – 26 February 2020 
 

To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises 
licence  

 

  
The Reason for the Decision To consider representations received in relation 

to an application for a premises licence under 
section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003. 

  
Summary of options considered  1) Grant the licence subject to— 

 
(i) the conditions mentioned modified to such 
extent as the authority considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
 
(ii) any condition which must under section 19, 20 
or 21 be included in the licence; 
 
2) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of 
the licensable activities to which the application 
relates; 
 
3) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the 
premises supervisor; 
 
4) Reject the application. 
 

  
Recommendations To consider the information contained in the 

report and reach a decision from the options 
available in paragraph 5. 

  
Financial /  Resource Implications None 
  
Legal / Governance Implications There is a right of Appeal against the Licensing 

Panel’s decision to the Magistrates’ Court within 
21 days  

  
Community Safety Implications Promotion of the crime and disorder objective. 
  
Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications 

None 

  
Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed 

No 

  
Wards Affected Marsh and Wampool  

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



  
The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities 

N/a 

  
Is this a Key Decision No 
  
Portfolio Holder Councillor Jim Lister    
  
Lead Officer  Deborah Fletcher 

Licensing & Compliance Officer  
Tel: 0303 123 1702 
Email: deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 
Report Implications (Please delete where applicable). 
 
Community Safety Y Employment (external to the Council) Y 

Financial  Y Employment (internal) N 

Legal Y Partnership N 

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N 

Equality Duty N Health and Safety Y 

 
Background papers: 
 
Appendix A - Representations, Appendix B - Operating Schedule (Conditions), 
Appendix C – Representations (Environmental Health and Cumbria Constabulary, 
Appendix D – Representations – Interested Parties,  
Appendix E – Representations – Interested Parties (Petition) 

 
1.0 Introduction  
 
1.1 This report concerns an application for a premises licence for Hunter Leisure 

Group Limited, Bowness House Farm, Bowness on Solway, Wigton. The 
applicant is Hunter Leisure Group Limited.   
 

1.2 Representations were received against the application and they must be 
considered in line with section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 (The Act). 
 

2.0 Application 
 
2.1 Hunter Leisure Group Limited have applied for a premises licence with the 

following description: 
 
 Leisure Complex including guest accommodation, bistro-restaurant & bar, on-

site shop and visitor centre & museum 
 

Page 4

mailto:deborah.fletcher@allerdale.gov.uk


2.2 The licence has been applied for no more than 4,999 people. Site plans have 
been provided and can be found at Appendix A.    

 
2.3 The application is for the following times and activities: 
 
  Late Night Refreshment – indoors and outdoors  
 
 Monday to Sunday 23:00 – 05:00  
 
 Supply of Alcohol – on and off sales 
 
 Monday to Sunday – 24 hours a day   
 
2.4 The premises would be open to the public at all times.  
 
2.5 The designated premises supervisor will be Ian Hunter. Mr Hunter holds a 

personal licence with Northumberland County Council. 
 
2.6  The applicant has put forward a comprehensive list of conditions they feel will 

promote the licencing objectives. They can be found at Appendix B.  
 
3.0 Key Points for consideration 
 
3.1 The Licensing Act 2003 has four licensing objectives –  
 
 The prevention of crime and disorder; 
 Public safety; 
 The prevention of public nuisance; and 
 The protection of children from harm.  
 
3.3 The application process includes circulating the application to all the 

responsible authorities. It also includes advertising the application in the local 
press and a notice on the premises. This is to allow for representations to be 
made for or against the application. Representations should be about the 
likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of at least one of the 
licensing objectives.  

 
3.4 The application was submitted on 15 November 2019. It was received 

electronically, and Allerdale Borough Council were under a duty to circulate 
the application to the responsible authorities. Due to an oversight the 
application was not circulated at the correct time. With the agreement of the 
applicant’s agent, Knight Training, the application was circulated to the 
responsible authorities on the 3 January 2020.  

 
3.5 It was not considered necessary to re-advertise the application as Knight 

Training had publisied the application in line with the regulations. That 
consultation resulted in representations from interested parties.  

 

Page 5



3.6 The Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to consider any representations 
made unless all parties agree that a hearing isn’t necessary. It is considered 
necessary to hold a hearing to consider the representations in this case.  

 
3.7 The Allerdale Statement of Licensing Policy 2016-2021 section 7.1 states that, 

when considering applications, the Panel should have regard to the Act and 
its objectives, Government guidance, supporting regulations, representations, 
duties and obligations under other legislation and the statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

 
3.8 Paragraph 7.2 of the Policy states that an application should be considered on 

its individual merits.  
 
3.9 Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

provides advice on considering if a representation is relevant. It recommends 
in borderline cases the benefit of the doubt about any aspect of a 
representation should be given to the person making that representation. The 
subsequent hearing will provide an opportunity for the person making the 
representation to amplify and clarify it.  

 
4.0 Representations and responses   
 
4.1 Cumbria Constabulary and Environmental Health responded to the application 

and suggested measures which they felt would promote the licensing 
objectives. The applicants have accepted those conditions and, if granted, 
they should be added to the licence. The details of the agreed conditions can 
be found at Appendix C.  

 
4.2 Two representations have been received against the application, one being a 

petition. They are from interested parties. Guidance issued under S.182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 allows for an interested party to have their personal details 
kept confidential from the applicant if they fear intimidation or violence may 
result from making a representation. The individual interested party and the 
covering letter for the petition both ask for the provisions in paragraph 9.27 of 
the Guidance to be applied.  

  
4.4 The text from the representations has been given to the applicant’s agent but 

the personal details have not. The text has been reproduced at Appendix D 
and a petition at Appendix E.  

 
5.0 Options available to the Licensing Panel  
 
5.1 The Panel must consider the representations and take such steps as it 

considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  
 
5.2 The steps available are: 
 

a) Grant the licence subject to the conditions mentioned in the operating 
schedule modified to such extent as the authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, and any mandatory condition.  

Page 6



 
b) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 

the application relates; 
 

c) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor 
 

d) Reject the application 
 
5.3 The Licensing Panel should give reasons for its decision. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 
 
6.1 The Panel should consider all the information contained in the report. They 

should make a decision from the options available in paragraph 5.2 taking into 
account information received from the applicant, interested parties and any 
relevant legislation or guidance.  

 
6.0 Appeal  
 
6.1 If any person party to the hearing is aggrieved by the decision of the Council 

they will have a right of appeal to a magistrates’ court within 21 days.  
 
 

Deborah Fletcher 
Licensing and Compliance Officer 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Hunter Leisure Group Limited, Bowness House Farm, Bowness on Solway, Wigton 
 

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

 

Consideration of the Allerdale Borough Council Licensing policy and pre-consultation with police 

licensing have been carried out to ensure the promotion of the four licensing objectives. 

The Shop & Bistro (marked on Plan) will be restricted opening hours to non-residents/not guests 

staying in site accommodation to Monday to Sunday 07:00 – 00:00 

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

A camera CCTV system is in place covering the premises 

Where CCTV equipment is fitted, it shall be maintained in good working order in accordance with the 

manufacturer’s instructions 

The images recorded by the CCTV system shall be retained in unedited form for a period of not less 

than 31 days and can be accessed and downloaded immediately when requested by the police or other 

authorised officer 

A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the Premises at 

all times when the Premises is open for Licensable Activities and whilst customers remain on the 

Premises. The staff member must be able to provide Responsible Authority Officers with copies CCTV 

images or data with a minimum of delay when requested 

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to the police or an 

authorised officer, which will record the following: 

 All crimes reported to the venue 

 Any complaints received 

 Any incidents of disorder 

 Any faults in the CCTV system 

 Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service 

 All ejections of patrons  

 All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  

 Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

 

c) Public safety 

The premises will be maintained in a safe manner at all times 

All exits will be kept unobstructed, easy to open and clearly signed 

The furniture or seating in premises shall be arranged so that it does not obstruct any exit, route to any 

exit or to any facility within the premises 

Regular inspections shall be carried out to ensure that the premises are safe for use. Details of the 

inspection, defects discovered and remedial action taken shall be recorded in writing in a logbook kept 

for that purpose. That logbook shall be made available for inspection on demand to an authorised 

officer of the Council, a Fire Officer or a Police Constable 

Printed notices shall be prominently displayed on the premises detailing the essential steps that must be 

taken if a fire is discovered or the fire alarm goes off or other emergency arises and how to call the Fire 

Service 

Any outbreak of fire of any kind shall be reported to the Fire Service immediately and a written record 

shall be made in a logbook kept for that purpose 

All members of staff will be familiar with the operation of the firefighting equipment 

There shall be maintained on the premises at all times an adequate and appropriate supply of first aid 

equipment & materials 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

Page 11



All refuse will be disposed of in an appropriate manner. Staff will be instructed to maintain all external 

areas in a clean and presentable manner at all times 

Refuse such as bottles shall be disposed of from the premises at a time when it is not likely to cause a 

disturbance to residents in the vicinity of the premises 

Notices will be displayed in the Bistro & Shop areas asking patrons to leave the premises quietly and to 

have respect for local residents 

The Premises Licence Holder shall display, at the entrance to the site, a telephone number to enable 

contact with the Designated Premises Supervisor/Manager on Duty 

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in the 

Shop & Bistro areas, where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only acceptable forms 

of ID are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of 

age card with the PASS hologram 

The premises will operate a “No ID, No Sale” policy at all times for persons who look under 25 

Staff will be trained in the understanding of this policy and training records maintained for inspection if 

requested by the police or any other responsible authority 

A notice shall be displayed in and at the entrance to the Shop area where they can be clearly seen and 

read and shall indicate that it is unlawful for persons under 18 to purchase alcohol or for any person to 

purchase alcohol on behalf of a person under 18 years of age 

Staff will be trained, by the DPS, in relation to responsible alcohol retailing and in understanding the 

Premises Licence. This training is to be refreshed every 6 months and recorded in their training record 

 

Page 12



Environmental Health Conditions 

 

No refuse, including bottles, shall be disposed of from the premises into a receptacle 

where such disposal is likely to cause a disturbance to residents in the area of the 

premises at any time between  20:00hrs – 08:00hrs on any day except Sunday when 

no such disposal shall take place before 10:00hrs. 

No light from or on the premises and any other light under the control of the 

premises shall cause nuisance to any nearby premises. 

 

Cumbria Constabulary Conditions 

 

A tamper proof CCTV shall be in use at the premises at all times when the venue is 
operating. This CCTV system shall be used and maintained in conjunction with the 
manufacturers instructions. 
 
CCTV images shall be retained for a period of at least 28 days and those images shall 
be made available upon request by an officer of the responsible authorities. 
 
An age verification scheme, such as ‘Challenge 25’ shall be in operation at all times 
when the sale of alcohol is taking place. A notice displaying such a scheme is in 
operation shall be displayed at the point of sale. 
 
An incident book will be kept, recording all incidents of disorder on or immediately 
outside the premises. All ongoing incidents of disorder will be reported to the police via 
999 
 
Staff shall receive suitable training in matters relevant to the licensing objectives and a 
copy of the training records shall be kept up to date and maintained by the licensee.   
 
Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly 
 

The bar and restaurant 

The bar and restaurant will close daily at 01:00hrs and the sale of all alcohol will cease 
at 00:30hrs 
 
No under 18s will be allowed in the bar and restaurant after 21:00hrs 
 

The Farm Shop 

The farm shop will only sell alcohol between 08:00hrs and 22:00hrs daily 
 

Room service 

Page 13



Room service will be permitted to sell alcohol on a 24hr basis. The alcohol sold must 
be supplied via the bar and restaurant, at bar and restaurant prices (or above that price 
if a service charge is added).  
 

Alcohol supplied via room service must only be consumed within the occupant’s room. 
 

No alcohol from the shop will be supplied via room service at any time. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



Interested Party A  
 
I am providing my comments only with the assurance that none of my personal 
details or location are published as above, given the serious threat to public safety 
and/or intimidation from the applicant.  As you are aware, there have been a number 
of public order incidents in our community involving the applicant, and matters have 
been referred to the Allerdale Policing Hub. 
 
It is not appropriate to use our Parish Council to represent residents views with 
regard to this matter.  The Council itself has had major issues with the Applicant. 
 

a) General – given that alcohol has been supplied for consumption on and off 
these premises for some months now without any form of licence, I trust that 
this illegal activity will be taken into consideration by the Licensing Panel 
during its deliberations. 
 
The application form states :- 
 
The Shop & Bistro (marked on Plan) will be restricted opening hours to non-
residents/not guests staying in site accommodation to Monday to Sunday 
07:00 – 00:00 
 
The notice on site states different i.e. 00:00 to 00:00, together with a late night 
refreshment licence from 23:00 to 05:00 
 
Therefore I am unclear what hours are being applied for, but if a 24 hour 
operation is being requested, I object strongly. 
 
In any case, I have serious concerns about any opening times before 11:00 
and after 23:00, in line with the other four licensed premises in the village.  I 
know of no other late night licences to 05:00 in our area.  It is wholly 
inappropriate in this location to warrant a late night refreshment licence in this 
quiet village location. 
 
Is the Personal Licence Holder going to be the Developer himself, or will this 
be a delegated position?  In section c) the application states that the DPS will 
be responsible for staff training – again a further delegated responsibility?  Is 
this appropriate? 
 

b) Prevention of Crime and Disorder – CCTV is no replacement for human 
presence and intervention in the case of an emergency.  It merely provides a 
record after the event (if all areas are covered).  This site has no provision for 
staff accommodation – I raised this concern as part of the initial planning 
consultation.  Given the size and complexity of the business operations within 
this development, surely there should be some requirement to have staff on 
site 24/7 to ensure safety and security, as well as the good and orderly 
behaviour of patrons – resident and non-resident – related to the consumption 
of alcohol. 
 

Page 15



Given that the nearest Police hub to Bowness is now in Workington, the 
response time should there be an incident would potentially by 45 minutes + 
(if resources were available).   

 
c) The maintenance of public safety again surely lies with the amount of staff on 

site and their capability in managing any incidents or accidents on the site 
safely.  If no staff are resident on site, it will be left to overnight guests and 
patrons to fend for themselves, assisted by neighbours and members of the 
public in general. 
Again, all emergency service response times for the area are outside national 
targets due to the distances involved. 

 
d) Given the nature of this site and its location in the centre of the village, noise 

from increasing numbers of patrons and vehicles using it is inevitable.  This 
must be considered as the impact will be immediate and substantial, which 
would be unacceptable throughout the night.   
Concerns re access, parking and vehicle movements have been well 
documented throughout this developments history.  

 
I trust that all the above concerns can be fed into the Licensing Panel’s consideration 
and be given due regard. 
 
Interested Party B  (Petition) 
 
The letter below was accompanied by 53 signatures.  
 
  
 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Revised Procedure at Licensing Panel Meetings 
 

April 2014 
 
Once the Chair has moved the exemption paragraph the press and public will 
leave the room. 
 
Procedure 
 
Step 1 
 
The Chair will ask those present to introduce themselves and explain the 
procedure to be followed.  
 
Step 2 
 
The Chair will ask the author of the report (or their substitute) to outline the 
proposal and the background to the case.  Their role will be to provide factual 
information to the panel. 
 
The Chair invites members of the panel to ask the presenting officer any 
questions they may have about the application. 
 
Step 3 
 
The Chair invites the applicant or the applicant’s representative to address the 
panel on the merits of their application.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of review 
applications all speakers are permitted an equal amount of time.  
 
The Chair asks if any member of the panel/officers present have any 
questions to ask the applicant or the applicant’s representative. 
 
Step 4 
 
The Chair invites any party making representations (including any other 
persons who have been given permission to participate (if any) to present 
their comments(s).  This may include Councillors who have submitted written 
representations on the application within the requisite timescale. 
 
The Chair asks if any members of the panel have any questions to ask any 
party making representations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Annex



Step 5 
 
The Chair offers the applicant or the applicant’s representative the final 
opportunity to address the panel.  The applicant or the applicant’s 
representative is permitted a maximum of 10 minutes.  In the case of a review 
application all speakers will be allowed an equal amount of time.  
 
Step 6 
 
The Chair will ask the parties to withdraw so that the panel can consider its 
determination. In considering its determination, the panel may seek advice 
from its Legal Adviser.  
 
Step 7 
 
The parties will be re-called and informed of the Panel’s decision. 
 

 Applicant to be advised that the decision will be confirmed in writing 
within seven days 
 

 Applicant to be advised of any appeal procedure 
 
All parties will leave swiftly prior to the next case. 

Page 22


	Agenda
	5 To consider representations received in relation to an application for a premises licence
	Appendix A Plan
	Appendix B
	Appendix C Env and Police
	Appendix D Reps
	APPENDIX D Reps2.docx

	 Procedure at Licensing Panel

